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(4) To the Federal Home Loan Bank
Board with respect to those financial
institutions regularly examined for
safety and soundness by FHLBB bank
examiners;

(5) To the Chairman of the Board of
the National Credit Union Administra-
tion with respect to those financial in-
stitutions regularly examined for safe-
ty and soundness by NCUA examiners.

(6) To the Securities and Exchange
Commission with respect to brokers or
dealers in securities;

(7) To the Commissioner of Customs
with respect to §§ 103.23 and 103.58;

(8) To the Commissioner of Internal
Revenue with respect to all financial
institutions, except brokers or dealers
in securities, not currently examined
by Federal bank supervisory agencies
for soundness and safety.

(c) Authority for investigating crimi-
nal violations of this part is delegated
as follows:

(1) To the Commissioner of Customs
with respect to § 103.23;

(2) To the Commissioner of Internal
Revenue except with respect to § 103.23.

(d) Authority for the imposition of
civil penalties for violations of this
part lies with the Assistant Secretary,
and in the Assistant Secretary’s ab-
sence, the Deputy Assistant Secretary
(Law Enforcement).

(e) Periodic reports shall be made to
the Assistant Secretary by each agency
to which compliance authority has
been delegated under paragraph (b) of
this section. These reports shall be in
such a form and submitted at such in-
tervals as the Assistant Secretary may
direct. Evidence of specific violations
of any of the requirements of this part
may be submitted to the Assistant Sec-
retary at any time.

(f) The Assistant Secretary or his
delegate, and any agency to which
compliance has been delegated under
paragraph (b) of this section, may ex-
amine any books, papers, records, or
other data of domestic financial insti-

tutions relevant to the recordkeeping
or reporting requirements of this part.

(Sec. 21, Federal Deposit Insurance Act, 84
Stat. 1114, 12 U.S.C. 1829b; 84 Stat. 1116, 12
U.S.C. 1951–1959; and the Currency and For-
eign Transactions Reporting Act, 84 Stat.
1118, 31 U.S.C. 1051–1122)

[37 FR 6912, Apr. 5, 1972, as amended at 50 FR
42693, Oct. 22, 1985; 52 FR 11445, Apr. 8, 1987.
Redesignated and amended at 64 FR 45451,
45453, Aug. 20, 1999]

§ 103.57 Civil penalty.

(a) For any willful violation, com-
mitted on or before October 12, 1984, of
any reporting requirement for financial
institutions under this part or of any
recordkeeping requirements of § 103.22,
the Secretary may assess upon any do-
mestic financial institution, and upon
any partner, director, officer, or em-
ployee thereof who willfully partici-
pates in the violation, a civil penalty
not to exceed $1,000.

(b) For any willful violation com-
mitted after October 12, 1984 and before
October 28, 1986, of any reporting re-
quirement for financial institutions
under this part or of the recordkeeping
requirements of § 103.32, the Secretary
may assess upon any domestic finan-
cial institution, and upon any partner,
director, officer, or employee thereof
who willfully participates in the viola-
tion, a civil penalty not to exceed
$10,000.

(c) For any willful violation of any
recordkeeping requirement for finan-
cial institutions, except violations of
§ 103.32, under this part, the Secretary
may assess upon any domestic finan-
cial institution, and upon any partner,
director, officer, or employee thereof
who willfully participates in the viola-
tion, a civil penalty not to exceed
$1,000.

(d) For any failure to file a report re-
quired under § 103.23 or for filing such a
report containing any material omis-
sion or misstatement, the Secretary
may assess a civil penalty up to the
amount of the currency or monetary
instruments transported, mailed or
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shipped, less any amount forfeited
under § 103.58.

(e) For any willful violation of § 103.63
committed after January 26, 1987, the
Secretary may assess upon any person
a civil penalty not to exceed the
amount of coins and currency involved
in the transaction with respect to
which such penalty is imposed. The
amount of any civil penalty assessed
under this paragraph shall be reduced
by the amount of any forfeiture to the
United States in connection with the
transaction for which the penalty was
imposed.

(f) For any willful violation com-
mitted after October 27, 1986, of any re-
porting requirement for financial insti-
tutions under this part (except § 103.24,
§ 103.25 or § 103.32), the Secretary may
assess upon any domestic financial in-
stitution, and upon any partner, direc-
tor, officer, or employee thereof who
willfully participates in the violation,
a civil penalty not to exceed the great-
er of the amount (not to exceed
$100,000) involved in the transaction or
$25,000.

(g) For any willful violation com-
mitted after October 27, 1986, of any re-
quirement of § 103.24, § 103.25, or § 103.32,
the Secretary may assess upon any per-
son, a civil penalty:

(1) In the case of a violation of § 103.25
involving a transaction, a civil penalty
not to exceed the greater of the
amount (not to exceed $100,000) of the
transaction, or $25,000; and

(2) In the case of a violation of § 103.24
or § 103.32 involving a failure to report
the existence of an account or any
identifying information required to be
provided with respect to such account,
a civil penalty not to exceed the great-
er of the amount (not to exceed
$100,000) equal to the balance in the ac-
count at the time of the violation, or
$25,000.

(h) For each negligent violation of
any requirement of this part, com-
mitted after October 27, 1986, the Sec-
retary may assess upon any financial
institution a civil penalty not to ex-
ceed $500.

[37 FR 6912, Apr. 5, 1972, as amended at 52 FR
11445, Apr. 8, 1987; 52 FR 12641, Apr. 17, 1987.
Redesignated and amended at 64 FR 45451,
45453, Aug. 20, 1999]

§ 103.58 Forfeiture of currency or mon-
etary instruments.

Any currency or other monetary in-
struments which are in the process of
any transportation with respect to
which a report is required under § 103.23
are subject to seizure and forfeiture to
the United States if such report has
not been filed as required in § 103.25, or
contains material omissions or
misstatements. The Secretary may, in
his sole discretion, remit or mitigate
any such forfeiture in whole or in part
upon such terms and conditions as he
deems reasonable.

§ 103.59 Criminal penalty.

(a) Any person who willfully violates
any provision of Title I of Pub. L. 91–
508, or of this part authorized thereby
may, upon conviction thereof, be fined
not more than $1,000 or be imprisoned
not more than 1 year, or both. Such
person may in addition, if the violation
is of any provision authorized by Title
I of Pub. L. 91–508 and if the violation
is committed in furtherance of the
commission of any violation of Federal
law punishable by imprisonment for
more than 1 year, be fined not more
than $10,000 or be imprisoned not more
than 5 years, or both.

(b) Any person who willfully violates
any provision of Title II of Pub. L. 91–
508, or of this part authorized thereby,
may, upon conviction thereof, be fined
not more than $250,000 or be imprisoned
not more than 5 years, or both.

(c) Any person who willfully violates
any provision of Title II of Pub. L. 91–
508, or of this part authorized thereby,
where the violation is either

(1) Committed while violating an-
other law of the United States, or

(2) Committed as part of a pattern of
any illegal activity involving more
than $100,000 in any 12-month period,
may, upon conviction thereof, be fined
not more than $500,000 or be imprisoned
not more than 10 years, or both.

(d) Any person who knowingly makes
any false, fictitious or fraudulent
statement or representation in any re-
port required by this part may, upon
conviction thereof, be fined not more
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